
Draft 
ST. MARGARET’S COMMITTEE 

Minutes of meeting 
August 24, 2010 

 
Members present:  Chairwoman Paula Schoonmaker, Linda Keeling, Rosemarie Zengen,  
Michael Brown (4:25 P.M.)  Absent:  Amy Dubin 
 
Advisors:  Doug Strawinski, John Kuhn 
 
Councilman Harry Colgan, Secretary Susan Ellis 
 
Chairwoman Paula Schoonmaker called the meeting to order at 4:10 P.M.  She announced that there 
are online university classes offered by PACE University. 
 
MINUTES OF THE JULY 27, 2010 MEETING:  Rosemarie Zengen  corrected the correction of 
Dr. Benedict Wallis’ name from the June 29 meeting.  She also disagreed with the underlining of 
corrections, which Secretary Susan Ellis said was a means to make it easier for readers to distinguish 
the corrections. 
 
Linda Keeling wanted pamphlets changed to brochures in paragraph 1 of Hardscrabble Day.  Linda 
noted a correction of the next meeting date to August 24, 2010.  The minutes of the July meeting were 
approved with corrections by a motion made by Rosemarie Zengen and seconded by Linda Keeling. 
 
ROOF REPAIR GRANT UPDATE:  Paula Schoonmaker announced that the amendments to the 
Community Capital Assistance Program (CCAP) grant have been approved , and a new contract with 
Architect Stephen Tilly was signed this day by Supervisor Sue Crane.  The drawings and 
specifications will go to New York State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation 
(NYSOPRHP).  Paula noted that Architect Tilly’s time line is mixing the roof repair with the 
restoration grant and said that reimbursement will have to be billed separately. 
 
Paula has asked Stacey Matson-Zuvic of NYSOPRHP if she could fast-track the process of review.  
Stacey said that she would try, but technically should have 4 weeks for the review. 
 
ARTIFACTS – UPDATE:  The Egbert Benson Historical Society has met and voted to waive their 
right of first acceptance of the artifacts.  Paula Schoonmaker has sent letters to all of the appropriate 
people and hopes that the artifacts will be accepted at the New York State Museum, and that the Town 
will get copies of the field photos. 
 
LANDSCAPE DESIGN:  Paula Schoonmaker reported that she sent a letter to Chairpersons of 
Landscape Design at the Botanical Gardens in New York City, the Conway School of Design in 
Massachusetts and the School of Forestry at Syracuse University to ask if they would have a student 
that would like to do an historic landscape project at St. Margaret’s.  The Conway School of Design 
said that it would ask for money.  Cary Arboretum was suggested as another possibility.  Rosemarie 
Zengen noted that James Cadorette is doing other work on the landscape issue and should be asked.    
 
John Kuhn said that the design is critical and the project would need a student under the guidance of a 
professor.  Michael Brown asked if the design would be based on research about the layout of the 
property.  Paula replied that no record of the original landscape has been found. 



 
SITE CLEAN-UP:  John Kuhn reported that on the Unification Theological Seminary Sports Festival 
Day, teenagers from across the country were brought together.  Some came to St. Margaret’s and 
loaded 7 trucks of debris.  Howie Callas and John Kuhn filled one more truck, and two community 
service workers from the Court have helped load 1-2 trucks and moved rocks.  Paula Schoonmaker 
said that John also thought that to level the north side, it would be necessary to remove stumps.  Paula 
asked the Committee for a round of applause for all of John’s work. She added that there has been a 
big article about the work at St. Margaret’s in the “Barrytown Explorer.” 
 
GARAGE:  John Kuhn reported that the garage has a cement floor and has value; it can be used to 
store materials during construction.  He noted that the bottom boards need replacing.  Linda Keeling 
made a motion that the Committee purchase the materials needed to stabilize the garage.  Rosemarie 
Zengen seconded the motion and the Committee approved.  Doug Strawinski they would buy 
prepainted boards and put them up, as leaves and debris caused the rot. 
 
DEAD TREE REMOVAL:  John Kuhn asked about removal of the remaining 20 dead trees.  He 
wondered if Bookkeeper Debbie Marks could transfer funds for the work, as the Highway Department 
charges any work that they do for St. Margaret’s Home to the Committee budget. 
 
HANNAFORD’S TREE:  Linda Keeling and Rosemarie Zengen met with Hannaford store manager 
Marsha Graham with the idea of a “Hannaford’s tree.”  They will get a tree and plant it at St. 
Margaret’s Home in honor of Hannaford’s donation of the property to the Town; the planting 
ceremony will take place on Hardscrabble Day at 1 P.M.  Tree Committee Chairwoman Nancy Guski 
suggested an American linden, which is indigenous and some were once planted there.  A 3” caliper 
12’ high tree could be purchased for $199 (usually $300) and placed where it would not interfere with 
the house.  John Kuhn noted that a landmark signature of the property is the linden tree near the 
driveway, though it is not in good condition.  At the time the house would have been landscaped, it 
was common to “frame” a house, so there probably would have been a matching tree, and in fact there 
is a stump near the willow, which could be the remains.  John said that there needs to be an 
appropriate set-back and the new tree would need to be fenced for protection.  He added that James 
Cadorette has said to prune the existing linden, which has rot inside, and plan to replace it.  One 
problem is that the willow would need to be removed before September 25. 
 
Rosemarie Zengen made a motion that John Kuhn work with Paula Schoonmaker and Nancy Guski to 
make the selection of the correct tree.  Linda Keeling seconded the motion and the Committee 
approved.  The Committee discussed who would pay for the tree, and Rosemarie suggested that the 
Save Our Town Committee might help fund it.  Karen Cadorette and Nancy Guski will plant it.  Paula 
Schoonmaker said that Phantom Gardener would not guarantee the tree; Augustine Nursery would 
guarantee it for 1 year.  John Kuhn said that a guarantee is critical.  Michael Brown offered to contact 
Augustine Nursery.  Rosemarie Zengen made a motion that Save Our Town pay for the tree.  The 
motion was seconded by Paula Schoonmaker and approved. 
 
Supervisor Sue Crane will make the dedication.  Rosemarie Zengen has contacted the Poughkeepsie 
Journal about writing an article, and will ask Supervisor Crane to put the 1 P.M. September 25 
dedication on the Town calendar.  Rosemarie Zengen and Linda Keeling composed a letter to Marsha 
Graham asking if Hannaford’s would make a contribution of a gift basket and cookies for 
Hardscrabble Day.  Rosemarie noted that Marsha Graham has said that the Committee should make a 
“wish list” of things that it would like done, and she will see what she can help with. 
 



HARDSCRABBLE DAY SEPTEMBER 25, 2010:  Rosemarie Zengen reported that she is waiting 
to hear from Dr. Verrilli about the loan of his historic cars.  Ed Blundell will close off St. John’s Street 
for the vintage car display.  Rosemarie asked John Kuhn if he could get two tents.  John will ask the 
Red Hook Recreation Pool.  Doug Strawinski also offered a tent 
 
Michael Brown, Linda Keeling and Rosemarie Zengen are working on a prototype of the brochure and 
presented a draft with a photo of the door and history credits.  They want to explain more about the 
history of the times in which St. Margaret’s operated, recognizing it as a cultural place in addition to 
an historic structure, not just a wealthy owner’s house.  Linda Keeling suggested that Wint Aldrich 
should write it; Paula Schoonmaker suggested that Michael Brown could write it and that Wint could 
check it. The subcommittee discussed the format of the brochure and who would print it.  Rosemarie 
Zengen made a motion that Michael Brown, Linda Keeling and she complete the brochure and have it 
printed with Paula Schoonmaker’s approval before Hardscrabble Day.  The Committee decided to 
print 500.  Linda Keeling seconded the motion and the Committee approved.   
 
John Kuhn suggested that on a wish list for Hannaford would be a one page fold-over for a program, 
also the Committee should have a plaque for the tree, which will be put up when construction is done.  
Rosemarie Zengen suggested using the Dennis Griffin drawing on the program and to ask if he would 
sign it.  Rosemarie made a motion, seconded by Paula Schoonmaker to ask Dennis Griffin for a 
signature.  The motion was approved. 
 
The Committee discussed banners for Hardscrabble Day.  Michael Brown asked if there had been any 
response on contributions.  He noted that on the photographic panel, the best price he has gotten is 
$150 for a 3’x 6’ vertical panel.  Rosemarie Zengen said that she thinks that she has someone to 
contribute a 3’x6’ horizontal panel.  Michael Brown offered to contribute $100 and get a stand that can 
be reused.  Rosemarie offered use of an arbor to put over the sidewalk for the entrance. 
 
A schedule of members to work the booth from 10 A.M. – 4 P.M. was established with 2 hour shifts.  
Paula Schoonmaker volunteered to do 10 A.M.- 12 P.M.; Michael Brown offered to do 2 – 4 P.M.  
Committee members agreed on who could bring supplies to set up the booth.  The Committee 
discussed a raffle and fundraising. 
 
MEMO:  Linda Keeling noted for the Committee’s information that commercial rental properties 
charge an average of $1.32 per square foot. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:55 P.M. 
 
NEXT MEETING:  Tuesday, September 28, 2010 at 4 P.M.  at the Town Hall 
**As you have already been notified, the meeting date was cancelled due to lack of  a quorum.** 
 
The next meeting will be Tuesday, October 26, 2010 at 4 P.M. at the Town Hall 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Susan H. Ellis, Secretary 
 
 
 


